Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
August 26, 2024

The Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees met on Monday, August 26, 2024 to transact business. Mr. Jordan called the
meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and all joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. Gary Jordan, Guy Bainum and Bari
Henning answered the roll call. Also present were Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson, Maintenance Supervisor/Zoning
Administrator Brian Tatman, Emergency Services Chief Jason McCarthy, Charlie Maklem, Barbara Steward, Amy
Campbell, Jody Wilson, Scott Tarvin, Corporal Adam Bailey, Tracey McCullough, Dylan Arnett, Roberta and Dan Dial,
Brian Bielfelt, and Ed Boll.

Mr. Bainum motioned to approve the minutes of the August 12, 2024 regular meeting. Mr. Jordan second. All yeas with Mr.
Henning abstaining.

Mr. Lefferson asked the Trustees to approve a resolution to amend appropriations by modifying appropriations from one
account to another within the same fund. The request was to decrease the Social Security appropriation by $4,000 and
increase the Medicare appropriation by $4,000 in the Fire & EMS 2022 Levy Fund to account for current year activity. Mr.
Henning motioned to approve Resolution No. 2024-12 to decrease the social security appropriation by $4,000 and increase
the Medicare appropriation by $4,000 in the Fire & EMS 2022 | evy Fund. Mr. Bainum second. All yeas.

Mr. Lefferson introduced Resolution 2024-13 certifying current tax levies to the Clermont County Auditor. Thisisa
standard annual process. Mr. Jordan motioned to approve Resolution 2024-13 certifying the amounts and rates of existing
tax levies to the County Auditor. Mr. Bainum second. All yeas.

Mr. Lefferson presented a financial report, including a comprehensive account of expenditures and receipts, an appropriation
status report indicating year-to-date expenditures by account, and a revenue status report comparing budgeted revenue to
actual received, and the Trustees accepted it.

Mr. Bainum motioned to approve the attached bills. Mr. Henning second. All yeas.

Cemetery and Maintenance Report
Mr. Tatman provided a report. He said he looked at the tree in the cemetery that Mr. Varney at the last meeting indicated was
dead. Mr. Tatman said the tree did not appear to be dead and provided a picture to the Trustees. Mr. Tatman said he did see
another tree that did need attention and it would be taken down this fall. Mr. Tatman said he looked into Mr. Smith’s concern
from last meeting of a culvert issue and a tree being washed out under it on Ireton Road. Mr. Tatman stated he took some #2
stones out to temporarily fix it and will get some larger rock for around it in the next week or so. He said there was already
some gravel down around it and provided the Trustees a picture. Mr. Tatman said we need to look at having a right away
permit. He indicated several other townships have them. The County told someone that wanted to have sewer and water
installed they needed to get a hold of the Township for it. Mr. Tatman said at this time we do not have a process for digging
in the right away. This permit would give the Township some standing to make someone fix the road/right away back to the
way it was. Mr. Tatman provided an example of a permit from another township. Mr. Henning said we have never had this
type of permit, but probably should. Mr. Tatman said they have been out mowing along the roads last week and cutting
brush back. He indicated they would continue to do that this week and the following week. Mr. Tatman stated footers will
be poured for headstones on Tuesday. Mr. Jordan thanked Mr. Tatman for the work on the French drain on Musgrove Road.
Mr. Bainum thanked Mr. Tatman for some of his follow up work.

Zoning Report
Mr. Tatman provided a report. He stated he had another meeting with Mr. Boyd who has the airsoft park on Clover Road.

Mr. Tatman indicated they are working to get the structure locations set and the Mr. Boyd is working on getting a survey
done and everything in compliance for zoning. Mr. Tatman said he and Mr. Lefferson have worked on a tentative schedule
for the solar resolution. The tentative schedule was based on when we get it back from the Prosecutor’s Office and then
when Mr. Tatman can get the zoning commission together again to go over it for any changes. Mr. Tatman stated he had
now just received the resolution back from the Prosecutor’s Office tonight. Mr. Tatman said the next Williamsburg
Township Zoning Commission meeting was tentatively scheduled for September 4™, the resolution would be posted on the
website after that, then there would be a County Planning Commission Meeting, then a Township Zoning Commission Public
Hearing October 15" or 16", and a Township special meeting after that. Mr. Tatman continued his report stating one zoning
certificate was issued for a porch this past week.



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
August 26, 2024

Corporal Adam Bailey of the Clermont County Sheriff’s Office gave a report on activity in the Township. His review of July
activity included one felony investigation, three misdemeanor thefts, one criminal mischief, two criminal damaging, two
mental health concerns forwarded to the appropriate agencies, and seven non-criminal offenses that require additional
documentation compared to an incident report. Corporal Bailey stated one specific criminal mischief issue that had been
previously discussed with the Trustees had been resolved from his standpoint. Mr. Jordan told Corporal Bailey he
appreciated the way he handled it. The Trustees stated they appreciated the report and Corporal Bailey’s service.

Emergency Services Report
Chief McCarthy provided a report. The Chief said in regard to community participation, the Department was in attendance at
the high school football game and did a public relations event at the Welcome Baptist Church. Chief McCarthy said he
would like to apply for the Nestle Purina Charitable Trust Grant. The Nestle Purina Charitable Trust was established in 1951
by Purina founder William H. Danforth to help provide critical support to important causes in Purina communities. Each
year, Purina invests more than $1 million from the Trust to support capital, or capacity-building, projects for non-profit
organizations. Many of these projects focus on bringing and keeping people and pets together, or providing support services
to our neighbors in need. This grant opportunity fits into the scope of updating and repairing our emergency services
building. The Chief said we would ask for up to $100,000 in support. Chief McCarthy said he would also like to apply for
the Norfolk Southern Safety-First Grant. The Safety-first Grant program is designed to promote overall community safety
across Norfolk Southern’s 22-state network. This program is intended to support organizations that directly provide safety
services or operate programs that promote safe behavior. Norfolk Southern values its relationship with first responders and
established the Safety-First Program, in part, to recognize and support such groups. The Chief said we would ask for up to
$15,000 in support of a project to purchase a new all-terrain vehicle. Our current brush units and John Deere Gator are aged
and will need replaced soon. This is an opportunity to work towards the replacement of these vehicles. The Chief said due to
the rural setting of our response area, East Fork State Park, and the projected increase in rail traffic, having an all-terrain
vehicle is monumental to continue our mission. Mr. Henning motioned to authorize Emergency Services Chief Jason
McCarthy and Fiscal Officer Doug L efferson to prepare and submit an application to The Nestle Purina Charitable Trust for a
2024 grant up to $100,000 and to execute any required documents associated with such Grant for the purpose of assisting
with additional renovations to the Emergency Services Building. Mr. Bainum second. All yeas. Mr. Bainum motioned to
authorize Emergency Services Chief Jason McCarthy and Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson to prepare and submit an application
to The Norfolk Southern Safety-First Grant Program and execute any required documents for a grant up to $15,000. The
grant funds would assist in acquiring a new all-terrain vehicle for general use in limited access areas. This is a particular
need for the Township given its rural areas, coverage of East Fork State Park, and anticipated increase in railway usage
coupled with aging equipment in regard to our current brush vehicles and all-terrain vehicle. Mr. Jordan second. All yeas.
Mr. Jordan told Chief McCarthy we appreciate what you do for the community. Mr. Bainum said October 26™ there is a
steak dinner at the Firehouse. Chief McCarthy said it was being put on by the Williamsburg Township Emergency Services
Association and tickets need to be purchased in advance.

Mr. Lefferson said as he reported last meeting LK Tech our information technology support provider has indicated we need
to migrate from a hosted server environment to a cloud-based environment by year end. He requested approval to enter into a
new contract for 2025, purchase new computer upgrades of $5,882.48, and pay for one-time professional services of
$8,500.00 with LK Tech to accomplish this migration. Mr. Henning motioned to authorize Fiscal Officer Doug Lefferson to
execute a 12-month Managed Services Agreement with our current information technology provider LK Tech, 2520 Harris
Ave., Cincinnati, Ohio at a cost of $988.80 per moth pending legal approval of the Agreement and to authorize the
expenditure of one-time costs of $5,882.48 for computer upgrades and $8,500.00 in professional services for the migration of
services to Microsoft 365 Cloud. Mr. Bainum second. All yeas.

Mr. Lefferson said there was a miscommunication on the quote numbers for the Emergency Services Building kitchen
renovation previously approved resulting in the quote being greater than $75,000. Therefore, he recommends rescinding the
previous motion and putting the kitchen renovation work out to bid. Mr. Jordan motioned to rescind the motion made at the
August 12, 2024 Board of Trustees Meeting to hire Third Generation Restoration 8570 Gwilada Drive, Cincinnati, Ohio
45236 to perform the upgrades to the Emergency Services building Kitchen. Mr. Henning second. All yeas. Mr. Jordan
motioned to put the Emergency Services building kitchen upgrades as part of the 2023 Community Development Block
Grant out to competitive bid under the rules of the Ohio Revised Code. Mr. Bainum second. All yeas.

Mr. Jordan said the Township has been working to secure the cemeteries and protect their sanctity by cleaning up deeds. In
the case of the Clover Cemetery, it involves separating the cemetery property from an old church. Mr. Bainum said when
churches go defunct it is the Township’s responsibility to maintain any related cemeteries. He stated we have been taking
care of the Clover Cemetery for a long time. Mr. Bainum motioned to execute the Quit Claim Deed and record it with the
Clermont County Recorder’s Office for the Clover Cemetery as attached. Mr. Jordan second. All yeas.




Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
August 26, 2024

Mr. Henning motioned to budget $75.000.00 for road paving for 2025 with the Clermont County Engineer’s Office. Mr.
Bainum second. All yeas.

Tracey McCullough introduced herself as a candidate for State Representative District 63. She provided some of her
background including previously working for the library system for 33 years. The Trustees thanked her for coming.

Mrs. Dial stated she lived on Sharps Cutoff and was here to get information on the solar farm. Mr. Jordan said he understood
the sensitivity of the subject and that there were a lot of people for and against. Mr. Jordan said that in regard to the Savion
project, Joe Speeg was our representative but on Savion issues only, everything else we do ourselves. He said the Savion
(Clear Mountain Energy) project was grandfathered. Mr. Jordan referenced the financial analysis for the solar project
presented at a previous meeting as an important argument. He said we want that area to be a good tax base. He said there are
different thoughts regarding solar in this room. Mr. Jordan said in regard to solar projects 50 megawatt and above we are
against it and we also do not want 2 to 3 adjacent properties combining. He indicated that we are ok with residential solar.
Mr. Jordan stated that the Township is also ok with business use like the parking lot example at the zoo he has mentioned
numerous times. Mr. Jordan said we do not want a solar freeze. Mr. Dial said the proposed solar project is wrapped around
his 10-acre farm. Mr. Jordan appreciated their concern. Mr. Dial asked about Barrett Paving moving a plant to property next
to the solar farm in the Township. Mr. Henning said that was hearsay. Mr. Henning said in regard to the solar it kind of
snuck up on us. Solar was new to the state. He stated after the State of Ohio enacted legislation the Township banned all
solar projects 50 megawatt or greater. Mr. Henning said there is one more step left for the Clear Mountain project and that is
an Ohio Power Siting Board Hearing September 10". Mr. Bielfelt said the Ohio Power Siting Board (OPSB) does have the
transcript of the August 1% local hearing. Mrs. Dial said that a lot of the letters to the Siting Board appear to be form letters.
Mr. Lefferson said he will send a document to the OPSB on behalf of the Township and plans to attend the September 10
hearing. Mr. Bielfelt said he had provided some information regarding the Clear Mountain Energy Project to Mr. Lefferson
and he appreciated Mr. Lefferson sharing numbers from the financial analysis. Mr. Lefferson said in regard to annual
Township revenue projected from the project, Clear Mountain estimated $46,000, which he could not substantiate, and our
own internal estimate looks to be between $28,000 and $31,000. Ms. Steward stated she was from Stonelick Township. She
indicated that in Central California they have moved solar projects out from around the cities into the desert. Mr. Jordan
thanked her for her input. Ms. Campbell asked if the upcoming Township solar meetings would be public. Mr. Henning said
the dates were tentative, but yes they would be public. The meetings will be posted on the website and in the newspaper
when required. Mr. Tatman said there will be a draft of the resolution so you can see it. Ms. Campbell said all the talk has
been about tax dollars but she is totally against it for health purposes and other reasons. She said the public has asked for a
freeze on all solar projects, above 50 megawatts are illegal, below 50 megawatts shut down everything. Ms. Campbell said
she presented Township officials with an affidavit. She said other Townships knew how to do it (enact a resolution freezing
all solar until rules developed). Mr. Jordan said we gave you our game plan and we will move forward with our legal
counsel’s advice. Mr. Lefferson asked if Ms. Campbell wanted the Township to do a resolution/motion to freeze all solar
until rules are developed. Ms. Campbell said yes. Mr. Lefferson said our legal counsel said we cannot do it. Mr. Jordan said
we have been forthcoming. He said we are looking after everybody’s interest; it is not about one person but our community.
Mr. Jordan said we parallel your thought on solar projects. Ms. Campbell said she attended the last meeting and wanted the
Trustees to show Ms. Wilson some respect. Mr. Tarvin said in reference to solar farms he had no use for fields of glass.
There was a question about if the megawatts had to do with the size of the panels, but it has to do with total produced on the
acreage. Mrs. Dial asked how many megawatts was the Clear Mountain project. Mr. Henning said up to 100 megawatts.
Mrs. Dial asked about the timing of the Clear Mountain application and was it not grandfathered. Mr. Henning said we
fought that early on in the process and lost. Mr. Jordan said we also questioned if the Williamsburg Township portion was
not grandfathered and lost that argument. Ms. Wilson said she had been a Williamsburg Township resident for 17 years. She
made comments that she did not approve of the way Mr. Jordan corrected her in the last meeting. She said she does not want
solar. She said she was cutoff when talking about Tate Township at the last meeting. Ms. Wilson said regarding the freeze
she is asking for a motion for 12 months until rules in place. She said people are being approached by solar companies for
under 50 megawatt projects. Ms. Wilson said right now we have no protection against these projects. She said it can be done
and that we share the same legal counsel (with Tate Township).

Mr. Boll asked about the land recently purchased by the Clermont County CIC. He said it could have an impact on solar.

Mr. Henning said that the CIC was authorized to make the purchase but no other details were available at this time. Mr. Boll
said the Cincinnati Enquirer was doing a special segment on the 32 corridor. Mr. Henning said we would much rather see the
proposed solar project land in the Township as something else. There was comment about road damage from the solar
project. Mr. Bielfelt said there were certain items the OPSB looks at when evaluating a project and the best way to stop it is
to focus on those areas. Mr. Jordan said the financial analysis on the impact to the Township is important. Mr. Bainum said
solar projects have broken down some of the back roads in other areas. Mr. Bielfelt said the OPSB is legally required to look



Williamsburg Township Board of Trustees Minutes
August 26, 2024

at community comments. Ms. Wilson said she would like to say again to take into consideration setting the upcoming solar
zoning meetings at a time when more people can attend. Township officials stated that the meetings are tentatively scheduled
for 6:00 or 7:00 pm. Ms. Wilson mentioned the video she emailed to the Trustees and Fiscal Officer and thanked Mr.
Bainum for watching it. Mr. Lefferson stated he watched the referenced video of the July 31% Tate Township Special
Meeting on their solar zoning resolution. He said from a fiscal perspective he was particularly interested in the fee
discussion. Ms. Wilson thanked Mr. Lefferson.

Mr. Lefferson said in regard to an Affidavit of Notice he was handed at the last meeting, as Fiscal Officer he finds the claims
unfounded and the tone of the document to be aggressive and threatening. Mr. Lefferson stated that he is not trying to be
over dramatic but, in an environment, where there was a recent assassination attempt on a former President and going back to
events like the takeover of the Capitol Building, he believes we need to be careful with the words we use.

There being no further business, Mr. Bainum motioned to adjourn at approximately 8:20 p.m. Mr. Henning second. All
eas.

Fiscal Officer Chairperson



